
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015   

8. Communications and Petitions: 

1. Claim filed by Amy Kohnhorst for damages to her vehicle from a manhole 
cover on State Highway 64, on October 14, 2015. The City's insurance carrier 
recommends that the claim be disallowed. This recommendation is based on 
the fact that an investigation by the insurance carrier revealed no negligence 
on behalf of the City. The City did not have prior actual or constructive notice 
of the manhole condition which allegedly caused the incident.   

9. General agenda items: 

1. Employee Years of Service Recognition:   

 Michael J. Schreiber, 25 years (Transit Department)   

 Tadd P. Wegener, 25 years (Fire Department)   

 Scott P. Krause, 25 years (Fire Department)   

10. Public Hearing(s):  

1. Public Hearing on proposed 2016 Budget   

11. Committee of the Whole:  

1. Consider recommendation from October 16, 2015 Committee of the Whole 
meeting to implement the results of the Carlson-Dettmann Compensation 
Study, using the option that will have a fiscal impact of approximately $64,000 
on the 2016 budget. The proposed appeal process is included in the 
recommendation.   

2. Consider recommedation(s) from November 10, 2015 Committee of the 
Whole meeting regarding request to eliminate requirement of $200,000 
escrow or bond from Merrill Area Development Corporation (MADC) related 
to 201 S. Prospect Street former "dip tank" environmental remediation project.   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday November 10, 2015 

3. Consider recommendation(s) from November 10, 2015 Committee of the 
Whole meeting related to the 2016 Budget, including new Public Works 
positions.   

12. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Application from Stephen Allen Schultz for a Class "B" (beer) license and a 
"Class B" (liquor) license for Collin's Bar and Grill, 2501 W. Main Street, 
effective November 11, 2015.  The Health and Safety Committee 
recommends approving the application.  

13. Water and Sewage Disposal Committee: 

1. Consider Water and Sewer Service Fee increases for 2016. All increases are 
approximately 3%.  The Water and Sewage Disposal Committee 
recommends approving the increases.   

14. Mayor's Appointments: 

 James Erno to the Housing Authority, term to expire November 10, 2020.   

15. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following minutes on file: Board of Public Works, Health 
& Safety Committee, Housing Authority, Joint Review Board, Library Board, 
Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, Parks & Recreation Commission, 
Personnel & Finance Committee, Transit Commission and Water & Sewage 
Disposal Committee.   

16. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution ratifying the January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017 contract 
between the City of Merrill and the Merrill Professional Police Association.  
The Committee of the Whole will consider the resolution at their November 
10, 2015 meeting, prior to the Common Council meeting.  

2. A Resolution amending employee benefits - fringe benefits at Section 14-5-1, 
Group Health Insurance Program for the Non-Union Personnel Policies, to 
change the employee contribution to ten percent (10%).  The Personnel and 
Finance Committee recommends approving the resolution.  

3. A Resolution of thanks to the City of Green Bay, Wisconsin.  This resolution is 
from the Common Council.  

17. Ordinances: 

1. A Charter Ordinance eliminating the Street Commissioner as en elected 
officer.  The Committee of the Whole will consider the ordinance at their 
November 10, 2015 meeting, prior to the Common Council meeting.  

2. An Ordinance adopting the 2016 City of Merrill Budget and establishing the 
Tax Levy for year 2015.  The Committee of the Whole will consider the 
ordinance at their November 10, 2015 meeting, prior to the Common Council 
meeting.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday November 10, 2015 

18. Mayor's Communications 

19. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2015-10-13  (1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2015-10-13  (1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2015-10-13  (1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2015-10-13  (1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2015-10-13  (1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Revenue and Expense Report  (1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
1

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
3

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
4

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
5

Attachment: Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim)



8.
1.

b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
6

Attachment: Kohnhort Disallowance Recommendation from Insurance  (1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance



 
 

November 2, 2015 

 

 

City of Merrill 

Attn: Bill Heideman 

1004 E. 1st Street 

Merrill WI 54452 

 

 

Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 

Our Insured: City of Merrill 

Date of loss: 10/14/2015 

Our Claim # WM000350140104 

Claimant: Amy Kohnhorst 

  W8220 Hwy FF 

  Merrill WI 54452 

 

 

Dear Mr. Heideman, 

 

Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 

Mutual Insurance which insures the City of Merrill.  We are in receipt of the claim 

submitted by Ms. Kohnhorst for damage to her vehicle as a result of the above-referenced 

incident. 

 

We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the City of Merrill deny this claim 

pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The disallowance 

will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  

 

Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed no negligence on behalf of 

the City. The City did not have prior actual or constructive notice of the manhole 

condition which allegedly caused this incident. 

 

Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 

disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 

claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 

disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

8.1.c

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

o
rn

h
o

rs
t 

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

 L
et

te
r 

 (
13

86
 :

 K
o

h
n

h
o

rs
t 

In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

)



 

Sarah Bourgeois 

PO Box 5555 

Madison, WI 53705-0555 

800-545-2190 Phone 

800-854-1537 Fax 

sbourgeois@statewidesvcs.com 

 

CC:  Bill Barnes 

 

8.1.c

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

o
rn

h
o

rs
t 

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

 L
et

te
r 

 (
13

86
 :

 K
o

h
n

h
o

rs
t 

In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

)



11
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
9

Attachment: Request and info on Prospect Street cleanup project  (1399 : COW recommendations



11
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
0

Attachment: Request and info on Prospect Street cleanup project  (1399 : COW recommendations



11
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
1

Attachment: Request and info on Prospect Street cleanup project  (1399 : COW recommendations



11
.3

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
2

Attachment: 2015 and Proposed 2016 City Organization Charts  (1395 : 2016 Budget Recommendations from COW meeting)



11
.3

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: 2015 and Proposed 2016 City Organization Charts  (1395 : 2016 Budget Recommendations from COW meeting)



Proposed PW-Street Positions - Fiscal 2016 Revised: 10/22/2015

City of Merrill - Public Works/Streets Positions

2016 Budget  (Incorporating Carlson-Dettman Rates)

Public Works Director Proposed PW/ 25% to 25% to General 15% TIF 10% Capital 25%
Engineer Water Fund Water Fund - Tax Levy - Tax Levy - Projects*

Salaries $89,783 $22,446 $22,446 $13,467 $8,978 $22,446
SS/Medicare 7.65% $6,868 $1,717 $1,717 $1,030 $687 $1,717
Retirement WRS 6.60% $5,926 $1,481 $1,481 $889 $593 $1,481
Health Insurance Family $16,847 $4,212 $4,212 $2,527 $1,685 $4,212
Life Insurance $576 $144 $144 $86 $58 $144
Total Personnel $120,000 $30,000 $30,000 $18,000 $12,000 $30,000

Note:  Anticipated hiring/start date of about February 1st, 2016. *Would be included in borrowing
           (Annual salary would be about $96,740)

Streets Superintendent Street Proposed Street
Commissioner Superintendent Difference

Salaries $73,340 $71,074 ($2,266)
SS/Medicare 7.65% $5,610 $5,437 ($173)
Retirement WRS 6.60% $4,987 $4,691 ($296)
Health Insurance Family $3,000 $16,847 $13,847
Life Insurance $745 $634 ($111)
Total Personnel $87,682 $98,682 $11,000

Public Works - New Hire Proposed Street
New Hire

Wages $34,095
SS/Medicare 7.65% $2,608
Retirement WRS 6.60% $2,250
Health Insurance Individual $8,498
Life Insurance $73
Total Personnel $47,525

11.3.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l I
m

p
ac

t 
o

f 
n

ew
 P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

 (
13

95
 :

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
fr

o
m



12
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: License Application from Stephen Schultz  (1337 : Class B license applications for Collin's



12
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: License Application from Stephen Schultz  (1337 : Class B license applications for Collin's



12
.1

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Relinquish Letter from Shirley Klug  (1337 : Class B license applications for Collin's Bar and



13
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
8

Attachment: Water and Sewer Fee Adjustments Info  (1363 : Sevice Fee Increases)



13
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
9

Attachment: Water and Sewer Fee Adjustments Info  (1363 : Sevice Fee Increases)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
3

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
4

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
5

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
6

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
7

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
8

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
9

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
3

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
4

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
5

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
6

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
7

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
8

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
9

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
3

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
4

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
5

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
6

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



15
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
7

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1357 : Place minutes on file)



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE JANUARY 1, 2016 to DECEMBER 31, 2017 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MERRILL AND THE MERRILL 
PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION 

 
 WHEREAS, negotiations between the City of Merrill and the Merrill 
Professional Police Association have culminated a tentative contract agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 10th day of November, 2015, that the 
City of Merrill accept the terms and conditions for the January 1, 2016 to 
December 31, 2017 employment years according to the terms of the contract 
between the City of Merrill and the Merrill Professional Police Association on file 
in the City Clerk’s office.  Said changes and amendments in the terms and 
conditions to the January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017 contract shall be 
effective January 1, 2016.  The existing agreement shall be modified accordingly. 
 

Recommended by:   
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 

16.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 R
at

if
yi

n
g

 2
01

6-
20

17
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

13
98

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Police Union - 2016 - 2017 Settlement Revised: 11/3/2015

City of Merrill - Merrill Professional Police Association (MPPA) -  2016 - 2017 Contract Fiscal

2015 - June 29th 2015 - Dec. 28th 2016 - June 27th 2016 - Dec. 26th 2017 - June 26th
1.00% 2.60% 1.00% Annual 2016 1.00% 1.00% Annual 2017

Police Officer $54,053.26 $55,458.64 $56,013.23 $55,735.94 $56,573.37 $57,139.11 $56,856.24
Police Officer 1 $55,563.88 $57,008.54 $57,578.63 $57,293.58 $58,154.41 $58,735.96 $58,445.18
Police Officer 2 $57,381.13 $58,873.04 $59,461.77 $59,167.40 $60,056.39 $60,656.95 $60,356.67
Investigator 1 $58,520.05 $60,041.57 $60,641.99 $60,341.78 $61,248.41 $61,860.89 $61,554.65
SRO/Investigator $58,520.05 $60,041.57 $60,641.99 $60,341.78 $61,248.41 $61,860.89 $61,554.65

2015 - Dec. 28th 2016 - June 27th 2016 - Dec. 26th 2017 - June 26th
Wage Adjustments 2.60% 1.00% Annual 2016 1.00% 1.00% Annual 2017
Police Officer $1,405.38 $554.59 $979.99 $560.14 $565.73 $562.94
Police Officer 1 $1,444.66 $570.09 $1,007.37 $575.79 $581.54 $578.67
Police Officer 2 $1,491.91 $588.73 $1,040.32 $594.62 $600.56 $597.59
Investigator 1 $1,521.52 $600.42 $1,060.97 $606.42 $612.48 $609.45
SRO/Investigator $1,521.52 $600.42 $1,060.97 $606.42 $612.48 $609.45

Fiscal Impact - Wages & Related Benefits Annualized Annualized
# in 2016 2016 2017

Police Officer 6 Two new hires are anticipated $5,879.91 $3,377.63
Police Officer 1 5 $5,036.87 $2,893.33
Police Officer 2 4 One PO2 based upon >10 years $4,161.28 $2,390.36
Investigator 1 1 $1,060.97 $609.45
SRO/Investigator 1 $1,060.97 $609.45

17 $17,200.00 $9,880.22

Social Security/Medicare  -  7.65% $1,315.80 $755.84

WRS - Retirement 16.18% in 2016 $2,782.96 $1,598.62

Fiscal Impact - Wages & Benefits $21,298.75 $12,234.68

WRS - Additional Employee Contributions 
# in 2016 Total WRS Total WRS

Police Officer 6 Two new hires are anticipated ($388.07) ($1,337.54)
Police Officer 1 5 ($4,848.06) ($954.80)
Police Officer 2 4 ($3,938.71) ($631.06)
Investigator 1 1 ($953.30) ($40.22)
SRO/Investigator 1 ($953.30) ($40.22)

17 ($11,081.44) ($3,003.84)

Longevity Paid in 2015 Anticipates 2 promotions - LT $2,740.50 Same as 2016 $2,740.50

Longevity $4,785.75 ($2,045.25) $0.00

Total $8,172.06 Total $9,230.84
Note:  Also impacts Non-Union Police Management
            WRS employee contributions 2016 2017

16.1.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l I
m

p
ac

t 
o

f 
P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

13
98

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



   

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
 

CITY OF MERRILL 
 

AND THE 
 

MERRILL PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION 
 

2016-20172014-2015 
 

  

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

2 
 

Table of Contents 

ARTICLE                          PAGE 

1     PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT………………………………………………………………………………….3 

2     RECOGNITION………………………………………………………………………………………………….3 

3     RESERVATION OF RIGHTS…………………………………………………………………………………..3 

4     HOURS…………………………………………………………………………………………………………...4 

5     DELEGATES……………………………………………………………………………………………………..4 

6     SALARIES………………………………………………………………………………………………………...5 

7     WORKER’S COMPENSATION…………………………………………………………………………………7 

8     VACATION………………………………………………………………………………………………………..7 

9     SENIORITY……………………………………………………………………………………………………….8 

10   LONGEVITY………………………………………………………………………………………………………9 

11   PAID HOLIDAY……………………………………………………………………………………………………9 

12   LEAVES……………………………………………………………………………………………………………9 

13   INSURANCE……………………………………………………………………………………………………..10 

14   CLOTHING ALLOWANCE……………………………………………………………………………………...11 

15   COMPENSATION FOR TRAINING……………………………………………………………………………12 

16   RULES AND REGULATIONS…………………………………………………………………………………..13 

17   GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE…………………………………………………………………………………….13 

18   SUSPENSION, DISMISSAL AND REDUCTION IN RANK…………………………………………………..14 

19   DEFENSE OF OFFICERS BY THE CITY ATTORNEY………………………………………………………15 

20   AMENDMENT PROVISION……………………………………………………………………………………..15 

21   SAVINGS CLAUSE……………………………………………………………………………………………….15 

22   NO OTHER AGREEMENT………………………………………………………………………………………15 

23   CHANGES IN THE TERMS OF AGREEMENT……………………………………………………………….15 

24   TERM OF AGREEMENT………………………………………………………………………………...………16 

25   GENDER…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..16 

26   FAIR SHARE AGREEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………….16 

27   SCHEDULING…………………………………………………………………………………………………….17 

28   STAFFING…………………………………………………………………………………………………………17  

29   PROMOTIONS……………………………………………………………………………………………………18 

30   PEHP PLAN……………………………………………………………………………………………………….18 

       SIGNATURE PAGE………………………………………………………………………………………………18 

       APPENDIX “A” SALARIES………………………………………………………………………………………19 

      APPENDIX “B” SENIORITY……………………………………………………………………………………..21

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

3 
 

ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

It is the intent and purpose of the parties hereto that this agreement shall promote and 
improve working relations between the City of Merrill Professional Police Association, 
hereinafter referred to as the Association, and to set forth herein rates of pay, hours of 
work, and other terms and conditions of the employment to be observed by the parties 
hereto. 

ARTICLE 2 – RECOGNITION 

This agreement made and entered into at Merrill, Wisconsin, pursuant to the provision of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Merrill and Wisconsin Statutes between the City of 
Merrill, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation as municipal employer with the Chief of Police 
as its agent, thereinafter referred to as the City, and the Merrill Professional Police 
Association as sole bargaining agent for the police officers of the Association, excluding the 
Chief of Police, Captain, and Lieutenants, who shall be considered supervisory personnel 

ARTICLE 3 – RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

The Association recognizes the right of the City and Chief of Police to operate and manage 
its affairs in all respects. The Association recognizes the exclusive right of the Chief of 
Police to establish departmental rules and procedures. 

The City and the Chief of Police have the exclusive right and the authority to schedule 
overtime work as required in the manner most advantageous to the City commensurate 
with the applicable ordinances or resolutions providing for overtime compensation as 
outlined in this Agreement to members of the bargaining unit. 

It is understood by the parties that every duty connected with operations enumerated in 
job descriptions is not always specifically described and it is intended that all such duties 
shall be performed by the employees. 

The Chief of Police, and the Police and Fire Commission reserve the right to discipline or 
discharge for cause. The City reserves the right to lay off personnel of the department. 
The City and the Chief of Police shall determine work schedules consistent with the 
Agreement and establish methods and processes by which such work is performed. The 
City and the Chief of Police shall have the right to transfer employees within the Police 
Department in a manner most advantageous to the City. 

The City, the Chief of Police and the Police and Fire Commission shall retain all rights and 
authority to which by law they are entitled. 

The City shall have the exclusive authority to transfer any governmental operation now 
conducted by it to another unit of government, providing it meets with the approval of the 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

4 
 

Common Council upon transfer, all agreements are terminated including this Agreement 
as pertaining to personnel of the Department affected by the transfer. 

The Association recognizes that the City has statutory and charter rights and obligations in 
contracting for matters relating to municipal operations. The right of contracting or 
subcontracting is vested in the City. 

All full-time employees hired during the term of this contract, shall reside within a 15-mile 
radius of the City of Merrill jurisdictional limits (boundaries), no later than 60 days after the 
completion of their probationary period.  

The powers, rights, and/or authority claimed by the City, are not to be exercised in a 
manner that will undermine the Association or as an attempt to evade the provision of this 
Agreement or to violate the spirit, intent or purpose of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 - HOURS 

The work schedule shall be 2 days on duty, followed by 2 days off duty followed by 3 days 
on duty, followed by 2 days off duty, followed by 2 days on duty, followed by 3 days off 
duty, on a continuing 2-2, 3-2, 2-3 schedule.  The schedule allows no less than 12 patrol 
officers on alternating weekends, Friday, Saturday and Sunday off.  The work day shall be 
12 hours in length.  Overtime shall be paid or compensatory time be given for all hours 
which are worked in excess of the regular 12 hour day or the regular 2-2, 3-2, 2-3 
schedule.  Since officers will be scheduled to work an average total of 2190 hours per 
year, City will provide each officer working this schedule an additional 110 hours of Kelly 
time.  Additionally, all Patrol Officers will receive 16 hours of Kelly time and in cases where 
an officer has 18 years of service, he/she will receive 8 additional hours of Kelly time, for a 
total of 24 hours after 18 years.  All Kelly time shall be used within the calendar year 
received. 

INVESTIGATOR/SRO:  The SRO and Investigator’s work week will be 5 days on followed 
by 2 days off.  Each shift will be 8 hours in length.  Additionally the SRO and Investigators 
will receive 32 hours of Kelly time and in cases where an officer has 18 years of service, 
he/she will receive 48 hours of Kelly time for a total of 48 hours after 18 years.  All Kelly 
time shall be used with the calendar year received. 

Officers will be entitled to a 30 minute lunch break and two 15 minutes breaks during their 
12 hour shift.  Officers will remain available for calls during their lunch/breaks. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – DELEGATES 

The City agrees to allow two (2) delegates of the Merrill Professional Police 
AssociationPolice Department to attend the Wisconsin Professional Police Association 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

5 
 

annual convention with pay.  The Merrill Professional Police Association shall provide 
sufficient notice of convention dates and delegate attendees to the Captain and/or Chief of 
Police.  No overtime shall be created to allow for delegates to attend the convention. 

ARTICLE 6 – SALARIES 

Salaries shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedule set forth in Appendix 
attached hereto and made a part thereof by reference. 

Individual salaries for new positions or substantially changed positions will be established 
by special negotiation at any time during the term of this Agreement, insofar as this does 
not conflict with paragraphs 2 and 3 of Article 3 - Reservation of Rights. 

NIGHT SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL.  Shall be as follows: 

Officers working the 6:00 am shift to 6:00 pm shift will be paid a shift 
differential of $200.00 yearly. 
 
Officers working the 3:00 pm shift to 3:00 am shift will be paid a shift 
differential of $700.00 yearly. 
 
Officers working the 6:00 pm shift to 6:00 am shift will be paid a shift 
differential of $800.00 yearly. 

 

CERTIFICATION PAY:  In recognition that police officers are required to maintain 
proficiency or certifications in work related fields, each officer shall receive $600.00 
annually. Certification pay shall be paid by January 31st for 2014. Beginning the first pay 
period of 2014 cCertification pay shall be paid at the rate of $.2884 per hour ($600 
annually). 

OVERTIME PAY:  All hours authorized by the Chief or officer in charge which are worked 
in excess of the regular eight (8) twelve hour (12) hour shift shall be deemed overtime and 
compensated at time and one-half of the officer's normal hourly rate.  

The parties by mutual agreement may agree that compensatory time be given in lieu of 
payment as provided by this section. If compensatory time is given, the same shall be at 
the rate of time and one-half.   

Overtime shall be rounded up or down to the nearest quarter hour.  

COMPENSATORY TIME:  The Chief shall grant compensatory time to be scheduled 
where sufficient staffing exists so that the City incurs no overtime obligation.  It is 
understood that this scheduled compensatory time cannot be withdrawn when unforeseen 
staffing shortages due to sick time requests or similar requests occur.  

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

6 
 

Officers may not carry a balance in excess of 84 hours of compensatory time with a 
maximum of 48 hours paid out by December 15th.  In addition, a maximum of 48 hours 
may be carried over into the following year. 
 
CALL-IN-PAY: Any officer called to work in addition to their normal schedule of hours shall 
be paid two hours pay for the call, plus time and one half for the time spent with no 
minimum. Call-in pay shall not be paid if an Officer is held over from a prior shift, or is 
called in at least 48 hours in advance of the starting time of the overtime, or for voluntary 
shift changes between officers. 

OVERTIME SELECTION: In the event that the number of patrol officers on duty drops 
below the minimum staffing levels to support daily patrol operations, a manpower shortage 
has occurred.  Also if the Supervisor or Officer in Charge determines that additional sworn 
officers are needed for work duties to support daily patrol operations and no special 
training, or skills are needed to perform the duties, a manpower shortage has occurred.  
Overtime in which special training or skills are needed, or overtime worked as part of a 
continuing investigation involving the officers working the overtime is not a manpower 
shortage and the city may assign overtime in a manner most advantageous to the city. 
Special enforcement activity overtime (i.e: Click-it, Fall Ride mutual aid, grant funded traffic 
enforcement) is not an essential component of daily patrol operations and may therefore 
be offered department-wide based on seniority.  

Overtime will first be offered to Union Patrol Officers on a seniority basis by the 
considerations prescribed below (Appendix B):  
 

1. A full shift of overtime is considered anything greater than 4 hours. Full shifts of 
overtime shall initially be offered as the entire shift. If the full shift is not accepted by an 
officer in whole then the shift may be split or the shift may be assigned to the least 
senior patrol officer available. 

2. A partial shift of overtime is a shift of 4 hours or less. In the event a partial shift needs to 
be filled, a hold-over may be assigned for the first 4 hours of a shift from the previous 
shift personnel. An early call-in may be assigned for the last 4 hours of a shift to those 
officers who are scheduled to work the next contiguous shift. Those assignments shall 
be offered to the applicable officers by seniority. If there are no volunteers or if a shift 
remains vacant the shift shall be filled according to the full shift selection process 
previously described. 

3. Officers known to be unavailable for the overtime opportunity may be omitted from the 
call-in process. (i.e: vacation time, Kelly time, compensation time, sick leave, or family 
leave during the overtime opportunity) 

4. In the event an emergency timely response to the available overtime is needed, a 
general exception to the seniority based call in process is recognized, as proximity and 
availability are overriding factors. 

5. Officers shall not work beyond 18 16 hours of duty in a 24 hour period, consecutive or 
otherwise, unless the exception is authorized by an Officer in Charge, Lieutenant, 
Captain, or the Chief of Police. Additionally, Officers should have at least 6 8 hours of 
rest between assigned shifts. 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

7 
 

If no Union Patrol Officers accept the overtime opportunity according to the previously referenced 
seniority-based call-in process, then the overtime may be offered to Patrol Lieutenants prior to 
ordering a Union Patrol Officer to accept overtime  

COURT TIME: Any officer reporting to duty for Court outside of their normal shift will be 
compensated at their overtime rate with a minimum of 2 hours. Any officer, whose court 
appearance is canceled after 5 p.m. of the business day before the court appearance, 
shall be compensated 2 hours at their overtime rate. 

EDUCATION PAY: Officers who have obtained at least an Associate Degree in Criminal 
Justice, a related field, or 60 college credit hours in lieu of a degree, shall receive an 
annual education benefit of $360.00, to be paid by January 31st of 2013. Beginning the first 
pay period of 2014 education pay shall Education Pay shall be paid at the rate of $.1731 
per hour ($360 annually). 

ARTICLE 7 – WORKER’S COMPENSATION 

Worker's compensation shall be governed in accordance with the Wisconsin Statutes and 
shall be the exclusive remedy of an injured employee against the City of Merrill. 

Provided that and for so long as an employee has accumulated sick leave time and is 
receiving worker's compensation, that employee shall receive full salary. The difference 
between the worker's compensation and the employee's full salary shall be paid by the 
City and deducted from his sick leave time according to the percentage that the amount of 
money contributed by the City of Merrill bears to that employee's full salary. 

ARTICLE 8 – VACATION 

The Chief of Police shall administer the vacation schedule according to the terms of this 
agreement. The Chief of Police shall reserve the right to determine the number of 
personnel to be on vacation at any one time in order to insure maximum protection and 
safety of the City. 

This agreement acknowledges a change in vacation accrual methods from the pro-rated 
method stated in previous agreements with the MPPA to the method whereby the 
employee accrues vacation on a monthly basis based upon anniversary date of hire. It is 
understood that the change in accrual methods will begin on 1-1-14. The starting balance 
of vacation hours at that time will reflect the balance normally expected on 1-1-14 under 
the previous MPPA contracts. Employees will not forfeit their previous accruals. 

In conjunction with the change in accrual methods, some employees may possess a 
“bank” or balance of vacation time beyond the amount of vacation time that will be accrued 
in the following year.  

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

8 
 

The vacation policy for the Police Department shall be as follows: 

48 hours after 1 year of service 

96 hours after 2 years of service 

144 hours after 7 years of service 

192 hours after 12 years of service 

240 hours after 18 years of service 

Vacation picks shall be completed by January 1st and shall be made on the 

basis of seniority by rotation.  Officers will be allowed to select and lock in up 

to 50% of the vacation hours they will accrue that year on each turn of the 

rotation.  

 
Officers who will accrue 96 or more hours of vacation shall be required to 
select a minimum of 24 hours . 

 
Officers who will accrue 144 or more hours of vacation shall be required to 
select a minimum of 36 hours. 
 
Officers who will accrue 192 or more hours of vacation shall be required to 
select a minimum of 48 hours. 
 
Officers who will accrue 240 hours of vacation shall be required to select a 
minimum of 60 hours. 

 

Officers shall be allowed to select single vacation days, subject to the following rule; 
Vacation selections in blocks of multiple consecutive days will have precedence over 
selections of lesser consecutive days. Vacation selection during the selection process shall 
be in the form of whole shifts or working days. In the event an officer does not schedule 
his vacation by January 1, the officer will take it on an "as available" basis after all other 
vacation has been scheduled. When taken on an “as available” basis, Vacation time, 
Compensatory time, or Kelly time may be used in ½ hour increments. 

ARTICLE 9 – SENIORITY 

The Department will have a seniority list to include all bargaining unit members of the 
Department by length of service (Appendix B). Permanent shifts will be selected on an 
annual basis. The selection process shall be completed by November 1st of each year 
unless an alternate date is mutually agreed upon. Seniority shall prevail in the selection of 
the positions available on each shift.  

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

9 
 

Shifts for bargaining unit members who have yet to complete two calendar years of 
employment with the City of Merrill Police Department will be assigned in the following 
manner; During their field training program, shifts can be assigned on a weekly basis. 
Upon completion of field training the Chief of Police will assign a vacant shift to be worked 
for the remainder of the calendar year. During the first two full calendar years of 
employment with the department, each new employee will be required to complete one full 
year on each of the afternoon and midnight shifts. Those shift assignments will be made 
by the Chief of Police for a full calendar year in the manner most advantageous to the City 
and the Officers. 

ARTICLE 10 – LONGEVITY 

Longevity payments shall be made to all officers according to the following plan: After ten 
(10)five (5) years of continuous service, $2.25 per month paid service retroactive to the 
first day of employment up to a maximum of $540.00 at 20 years of service. 

Beginning in 2015, Llongevity will be computed and paid once a year ,on or about 
December 1. the Friday before Thanksgiving. 

(Officer Heckendorf is frozen at the current level of $756.00) 

ARTICLE 11 – PAID HOLIDAYS 

All officers will receive eight and one-half holidays paid at their double time rate of pay (8 
1/2 X 17 = 140.25 total hours of pay). Holiday pay shall be paid once a year on or about 
December 1.the Friday before Thanksgiving. 

ARTICLE 12 – LEAVES 

SICK LEAVE:  Sick leave shall be administered by the Chief of Police as per City 
Personnel Policies for Sick Leave, except that notwithstanding any other provision 
contrary thereto in said City Personnel Policies, sick leave shall accumulate at the rate of 
one 12 hour day for each month of service worked in the calendar year based on the 12 
hour schedule and at the rate of one 8 hour day for each month for all others.  Sick leave 
shall not accrue if an employee is on an unpaid leave during an entire calendar month. 

FUNERAL LEAVE: Funeral leave shall be administered by the Chief of Police as per City 
Personnel Policies for Death in Family. The City Policies on Funeral Leave shall be 
incorporated into this Agreement language. 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY: Requests for leave of absence without pay for 
justifiable reasons shall be made by written application on a form provided by the Clerk-
Treasurer’s Office and be submitted at least two (2) weeks prior to the anticipated leave. 
Emergency leave requests would be the exception. 

 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

10 
 

1. For a leave not to exceed three (3) consecutive days, the request shall be submitted 
for approval to the Chief of Police. 

2. For a leave in excess of three (3) consecutive days, the officer shall make a request 
to the Personnel Director after securing the approval of the Chief of Police. 

ACCRUED SICK LEAVE CREDIT:  All officers covered by the agreement who actually 
retire from the City Service and apply within sixty (60) days of the last day paid for a 
retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund shall have their sick leave credits 
from the time of retirement converted to a monetary value (allowable hours of accumulated 
sick leave times normal hourly rate of pay received immediately prior to retirement), which 
the City shall deposit in Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP).   

If an officer retires before their 62nd birthday, but after their 50th birthday, the officer may 
then remain a member of the City's insurance group until age sixty-five (65). Retired is 
defined for purposes of this section, as drawing a pension check from the Wisconsin 
Retirement Fund. The officer shall be responsible for the entire premium as charged to the 
City for such insurance, paid by the 10th of the month prior to the month for which 
coverage is desired.   

The maximum number of hours an officer will be entitled to so convert is a total of 1300 
hours. 

ACCRUED SICK LEAVE CREDIT:  Officers shall receive one personal (kelly) day off 
when the officer does not use sick leave during a calendar year. Said kelly day will be 
granted in the year following the year in which it was earned. 

MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE:   

While on active military duty or training of 6-months or less, the Employer shall make up 
the difference between the military compensation received and the employees current 
salary.  
 
In addition to the above, employees requesting an unpaid leave of absence for military 
service are covered consistent with Federal Law. 
 

DONATION OF TIME:  Officers will be allowed to donate vacation time, kelly hours, and/or 
compensatory time to other officers who have exhausted their sick leave and are in need 
of additional time off. 

ARTICLE 13 - INSURANCE 
HEALTH INSURANCE: For 2016,2014 Officers shall continue to pay 10.00%8.98% of the 
health insurance premiums as an employee contribution. For 2017, Eeffective December 28, 
2016,29, 2014, the Officers shall pay 10.5%9.5% of the health insurance premium if the 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

11 
 

premium to the City increases by 6% or less, for 2015, and 11.00%10% if the premium 
increase to the City is greater than 6% and up to 12%, and 11.50%10.5% if the increase in 
premiums to the City is greater than 12%.  If the premium for non-union employees remains 
at 10.00%8.98% in 20172015, the same rate shall apply to union personnel. 

The Employee shall be responsible for the single or family annual deductible. 

 

The City shall contribute the same amount to HSA accounts for Police Union personnel, 
single and family plans, as that contributed for non-union employees or other union 
employees.  

In 2014, the City shall contribute $760.83 for a single plan and $1,521.66 for a family plan as 
seed money for the HSA enrollees, half to be paid Dec. 30, 2013 and half to be paid June 30, 
2014. In 2015, the City shall contribute $400 for a single plan and $800 for a family plan paid 
in two installments, half on December 29, 2014 and half on June 29, 2015. 

Notwithstanding Article 13 – Insurance (portions of which the parties acknowledge is a 
prohibited subject of bargaining), the design and selection of the health care coverage 
plan will be determined by the City in accordance with the provisions of 2011 Wisconsin 
Acts 10 and 32 and the statutory language it created in Wis. Stat. 111.70(4)(mc)(6).  In the 
event this statutory language is amended, repealed or otherwise declared invalid such that 
the issues addressed in Article 13 are no longer prohibited subjects of bargaining prior to 
the expiration of this agreement, the design and selection of the health care coverage plan 
shall be made in accordance with the language of this article.  

LIFE INSURANCE: The City agrees to pay its share of the costs, and in addition, one 
hundred percent (100%) of the officer's contribution in the State Life Insurance Program 
based on annual earnings. An officer not wishing to participate in the Life insurance 
Programs must sign a waiver of insurance form available in the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office. 
The City shall double the amount of coverage.  

WISCONSIN RETIREMENT FUND:  

For employees hired before July 1, 2011, in addition to the City’s share, the City agrees to 
pay the employees share of Wisconsin Retirement Fund contributions, except: 

For 2014 

      12/30/2013   Same 4.0% WRS  as 2013 (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011) 

      06/30/2014   Increase to 4.5% WRS (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011) 

For 2015 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

12 
 

      12/29/2014   Increase to 5.0% WRS (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011)  

AllFor employees hired after June 30, 2011, the employee shall pay the entire employee 
required share to the Wisconsin Retirement Fund, equal to general municipal employees. 

ARTICLE 14 – CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 

Clothing allowance shall be administered by the Chief of Police. Officers shall be 
compensated $600.00 annually.  Probationary officers will receive an additional $100.00 
for the first year. However, in the Probationary officer’s 2nd year the amount received will 
be pro-rated based on length of service during their first year of employment with the City 
of Merrill Police Department.  It is hereby agreed that the clothing allowance shall be paid 
to the officers each year by the second pay period in January.  

The City will furnish badges, holsters, handcuffs, handcuff cases, whistles, flashlights and 
service pistols, and primary use body armor to each officer. 

If, during a new police officer's probationary period or any extensions thereof, the police 
officer is terminated or resigns, said police officer shall return to the department all 
equipment purchased pursuant to the uniform allowance.  

If a police officer's uniform (including prescription eyewear) is damaged in the line of duty, 
excluding damages due to, or resulting from, ordinary wear, the employer shall bear the 
cost of repair or replacement thereof on the following basis. The Chief shall determine 
whether repair or replacement is necessary. If the Chief decides that repair is to be 
undertaken, the Chief shall pay to the officer the reasonable cost of repairing. If the Chief 
determines that repair is not feasible, he/she shall direct that the officer be paid one 
hundred percent (100%) of the cost of replacing the article and the officer shall surrender 
the damaged item to the Chief.  

ARTICLE 15 - COMPENSATION FOR TRAINING 

All training programs shall be administered by the Chief of Police and the Police 
Department Training Officer.  

In-House Training The City, in the normal course of business, conducts in-house training 
of its officers. In-house training is defined as instructions given by staff employees of the 
City Of Merrill. The City agrees to conduct in-house training of any specific subject more 
than one time. That is, the City agrees to offer the training on at least two (2) separate 
occasions. Any officer who cannot attend the in-house training on his or her regularly 
scheduled hours shall receive compensation for alternating on-off hours at a rate of time 
and one-half for hourly pay. 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

13 
 

Off duty officers shall receive a minimum of two hours of compensation at time and one 
half for any training session. 

Out-of-House Training  The City will pay for training anytime an employee is required to 
attend a class, training session or conference off City Hall premises.  Officers who complete 
their training and the training is within 50 miles from Merrill (including travel and breaks) 
prior to the end of their normal work day, will be expected to complete the shift’s regular 
total hours by one of the following methods: 

1. Officers may continue to work upon their return until the time commitment is met. 
2. Officers may request the amount of time not worked to be deducted from their 

comp/Kelly time bank. 

If the training is outside of the 50 mile radius, the officer will be compensated and credited 
as if they worked their normal 8 or 12 hour shift, provided that the hours credited in 
addition to the actual hours do not count towards incurring overtime compensation. 

In order to facilitate the attendance of an officer at a training session, it is permissible for 
the officer and the Captain to agree upon switching time off on a straight time basis so that 
overtime will not be incurred. 

If an officer is assigned to attend training, and said training site is more than 50 miles from 
the Merrill Police Department and lodging is necessary the costs will be the responsibility 
of the City. 

ARTICLE 16 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

The rules and regulations of the Merrill Police Department including those approved by the 
Common Council of the City of Merrill, as revised from time to time are hereby made a 
part, of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 17 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

The procedure under this article provides an orderly method to present and settle 
grievances which may arise between the Association and the City, as to the meaning of 
application of or compliance with provisions of this agreement. It is a further purpose of 
this grievance procedure to assure observance of the terms and work relationships set 
forth in this agreement. The grievance procedure is available to the Association and is 
limited to matters covered by the Agreement.  

Grievances shall be settled by steps as follows: 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

14 
 

A.  Any officer covered by this agreement who has a grievance shall within ten (10) days 
after the officer is aware of cause for a grievance, report such grievance in writing 
individually or with an Association Representative to a Lieutenant, Captain or Chief of 
Police, who shall investigate the grievance thoroughly. The Lieutenant, Captain or Chief of 
Police shall furnish the grievant(s) and the Association with a written answer to the 
grievance. In the event no satisfactory agreement has been reached within ten (10) days 
between the grievant(s) and the Department Head, the grievance will advance to step 2.   

B.  If the grievance is not settled at the first step, the grievance shall be presented in 
writing within ten (10) days of the answer to the Personnel and Finance Committee or 
Police and Fire Commission, whichever authority has jurisdiction on any particular 
grievance. 

1. If the grievance shall be deemed under the jurisdiction of the Police and Fire 
Commission, the grievance shall therefore be governed by Section 62.13 of the 
Wisconsin Statutes.  The Police and Fire Commission shall within ten (10) days set 
up an informal meeting with all parties involved up to this point.  Within ten (10) 
days, (Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays excluded), after this meeting a 
determination shall be made and reduced to writing and copies submitted to all 
parties involved. 
 

2. All other grievances relating to wages, hours and working conditions or any other 
matter under jurisdiction of the Personnel and Finance Committee shall be directed 
to same.  The Personnel and Finance Committee shall within ten (10) days set up 
an informal meeting with all parties involved up to this point. Within ten (10) days, 
(Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays excluded) after this meeting a determination 
shall be made and reduced to writing and copies submitted to all parties involved. 

C.  If the grievance is not settled with the Committee or the Police and Fire Commission 
the aggrieved party may within thirty (30) days of the answer from either commission or 
committee, submit the grievance to the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission for 
its staff to appoint an arbitrator. The decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding on all 
parties, except for judicial review, pursuant to statute. 

D.  The Association may appoint representatives of the Association and shall inform the 
City of the names of the individuals so appointed and of any change thereafter made in 
such appointments. The City shall allow the representative the necessary time to process 
grievances during the course of the duty day, as long as it does not interfere with their 
regular work responsibilities. 
 

ARTICLE 18 - SUSPENSION, DISMISSAL AND REDUCTION IN RANK 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

15 
 

Suspension, dismissal and reduction in rank of employees from the Police Department 
shall be governed by Section 62.13 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

All newly hired permanent employees shall be considered probationary for a period of one 
year from their date of employment with the Merrill Police Department. Probationary 
employees may be discharged without recourse to the grievance procedure. 

Continued employment beyond the probationary period above noted is hereby defined as 
evidence of satisfactory completion of probation. 

A permanent employee is hereby defined as a person hired to fill a full time position in the 
Table of Organization. The seniority of a permanent employee who has satisfactorily 
completed probation shall date from their date of employment. 

Proper records indicating status of the officer shall be maintained. Seniority shall be 
established for each officer, and shall consist of the total calendar time elapsed since the 
date of their employment.  Seniority rights terminate upon discharge or quitting.   
 

ARTICLE 19 - DEFENSE OF OFFICERS BY THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 

The City or its authorized agent shall defend actions brought against any officer growing 
out of any acts done in the course of his/her employment or out of any alleged breach of 
duty as such officer. 

Any judgment obtained against such officer shall be paid by the City, provided the officer 
acted in good faith. 

ARTICLE 20 - AMENDMENT PROVISION 

This Agreement is subject to amendment, alteration or addition only by a subsequent 
written agreement between and executed by the City and the Association where mutually 
agreeable. 

The waiver of any breach, term or condition of the agreement by either party shall not 
constitute a precedent in the future enforcement of all its terms and conditions. 

ARTICLE 21- SAVINGS CLAUSE 

If any Article or Section of this Agreement or any addendum thereto should be held invalid 
by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or 
enforcement of any Article or Section should be restrained by such or be affected thereby, 
and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations for the 
purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement of such Article or Section. 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

16 
 

ARTICLE 22 - NO OTHER AGREEMENT 

The employer agrees not to enter into any other Agreement, written or verbal, with any 
individual covered by the agreement, individually or collectively, which in any way conflicts 
with the provisions of this agreement. 

ARTICLE 23 - CHANGES IN THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT 

If either party desires to negotiate any changes in this Agreement to become effective after 
the end of the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, it shall notify the other 
party in writing of its desire to enter into such negotiations, on or before July 1, 20172015 
following such notification and specifically within the next 120 days, the parties hereto shall 
meet and engage in negotiations. 

 

ARTICLE 24 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall become effective as of January 1, 20162014, and remain in full force 
and effect to and including December 31, 20172015  and shall renew itself for additional 
one year periods thereafter unless either party pursuant to Article 23 has notified the other 
party in writing that it desires to alter or amend this Agreement at the end of the contract 
period. 

It is agreed by and between the parties that the terms and conditions of the Employment 
Agreement as contained herein shall be binding on both parties. The Agreement may be 
reopened by mutual agreement of the parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 25 - GENDER 

Any and all references to the genders of "he" or "she" in this contract or the reference to 
"employee" shall be synonymous with the term of the police officer. 

ARTICLE 26 - FAIR SHARE AGREEMENT 

Membership in the Association is not compulsory. An officer may join the Association and 
maintain membership therein consistent with its constitution and bylaws. No employee 
shall be denied membership because of race, color, creed or sex. This Article is subject to 
the duty of the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission to suspend the application 
of this Article wherever the Commission finds the Association has denied an employee 
membership because of race, color, creed or sex. 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

17 
 

The Association will represent all of the officers in the bargaining unit, members and non-
members, fairly and equally, and therefore all officers shall pay their proportionate share of 
the costs of the collective bargaining process and contract administration by paying an 
amount to the Association equivalent to the uniform dues required of members of the 
Association. 

The Employer agrees that on the first paycheck of every month it will deduct from the 
earnings of all officers in the collective bargaining unit covered by this agreement, the 
amount of money certified by the Association as being the monthly dues uniformly 
required of all officers. Changes in the amount of dues to be deducted shall be certified by 
the Association 30 days before the effective date of the change. Deductions shall be made 
each month, and the total of such deductions shall be paid to the Association. 

The Employer shall not be liable to the Association, officers or any party by reason of the 
requirement of this Article for the remittance or payment of any sum other than that 
constituting actual deduction from officer’s wages earned. 

The collective bargaining representative shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless 
against any and all claims, demands, suits, orders, judgments or other forms of liability 
against the Employer that arise out of the Employer's compliance with this fair share 
agreement. 

The Association agrees to certify to the employer only such fair share costs as are allowed 
by law, and further agrees to abide by the decisions of the Wisconsin Employment 
Relations Commission and/or courts of competent jurisdiction in the regard. The 
Association agrees to inform the Employer of any change in the amount of such fair share 
costs thirty (30) days before the effective date of the change. The Association shall 
provide officers who are not members of the Association with an internal mechanism within 
the Association which will allow those officers to challenge the fair share amount certified 
by the Association as the costs of representation and receive, where appropriate, a rebate 
of any monies determined to have been improperly collected by the Association. 

ARTICLE 27 - SCHEDULING 
The City agrees that once a request for an off day(s) has been granted, said off day(s) 
cannot be canceled unless said cancellation is done at least fourteen days prior to the 
scheduled off day(s). Officers will be given at least fourteen day notice prior to any type of 
mandatory shift change, except in an emergency. Any officer whose scheduled shift is 
changed without the minimum fourteen day notice will receive 2 hours of call time pay. In 
addition, the City will not change an officer's shift to allow for the purpose of granting time 
off. This shall not apply to voluntary switches among the officers. 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

18 
 

For off days requested outside of the posted schedule, the Chief or designee shall review 
that request and either approve or deny it within the seven days of receipt. Once 
approved, those days will be entered on the twelve-month work schedule and are no 
longer subject to cancellation because of seniority. Off day requests within the posted 
schedule will continue to be addressed by the first line supervisors. 

ARTICLE 28 – STAFFING 

In consideration of implementation of combined dispatch service between the City of 
Merrill and Lincoln County, the Captain, the Investigative Lieutenant, and Investigator(s) 
will not count toward patrol minimum staffing requirements. 
 
Nothing in this Agreement constitutes the establishment of a minimum staffing requirement 
for the Police Department and any decision regarding the filling of vacancy on a shift shall 
be determined by the Police Chief or designee for each specific shift, in accordance with 
the collective bargaining agreement. 
 
Despite the language in Article 3 of this agreement, there shall be no layoffs during the 
term of this contract, and the City shall maintain current staffing levels during this contract 
term. 
 
ARTICLE 29 - PROMOTIONS 

A promoted officer is required to complete a trial period of six (6) months, during which 
time the officer shall receive pay compatible with that of the promoted position. If the 
officer is not retained in the new position or if the officer does not wish to remain in said 
position, the officer may return to his/her former position at the former rate without loss of 
previous rights. Such return shall not be considered a demotion. This Section applies to all 
promotions within the Police Department. 

ARTICLE 30- PEHP PLAN 

The City of Merrill agrees to participation the Life Insurance and Health Plan for Collectively 
Bargained Public Employee (variable employee benefit agreement - "Plan"); the City will 
contribute the following into each bargaining unit employee’s account: 
 

$37.00 Per Pay Period, plus an additional annual contribution of $370.  
 
 

 

 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

19 
 

CITY OF MERRILL                        MERRILL PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION 

 
Dated ________________________ Dated ______________________ 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
Mayor                                               Union President 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
City Administrator                                   Union Officer 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                                                WPPA/LEER Representative 
  

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

20 
 

Appendix A 

Appendix A of the prior Labor Agreement shall be amended to reflect the following 
increase for Police Officer, Police Officer 1, Police Officer 2, Investigator 1 and 
SRO/Investigator.  The hourly wage is based on 2080 hours  

 
      Effective December 28, 201530, 2013– 2.601% 

Police Officer       $55,458.6452,463.56 $26.662807 

Police Officer 1 – After fivesix (56) years of service $57,008.5453,929.79 $27.407951 

Police Officer 2 – After tentwelve (1012) years of service$58,873.0455,693.56 $28.304346 

Investigator 1      $60,041.5756,798.99 $28.866139 

SRO/Investigator      $60,041.5756,798.99 $28.866139 

 

      Effective June 27, 201630, 2014 – 1% 

Police Officer       $56,013.2352,988.19 $26.929437 

Police Officer 1 – After fivesix (56) years of service $57,578.6354,469.06 $27.682033 

Police Officer 2 – After tentwelve (1012) years of service$59,461.7756,250.50 $28.587389 

Investigator 1      $60,641.9957,366.97 $29.154802 

SRO/Investigator      $60,641.9957,366.97 $29.154802 

 

      Effective December 26, 201629, 2014 – 1% 

Police Officer       $56,573.3653,518.08$27.198730 

Police Officer 1 – After fivesix (56) years of service $58,154.4155,013.75 $27.958850 

Police Officer 2 – After tentwelve (1012) years of service$60,056.3956,813.00 $28.873264 

Investigator 1      $61,248.4157940.64 $29.446350 

SRO/Investigator      $61,248.4157940.64 $29.446350 

 

 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

21 
 

      Effective June 26, 201729, 2015 – 1% 

Police Officer       $57,139.1054,053.26 $27.470721 

Police Officer 1 – After fivesix (5) years of service $58,735.9655,563.88 $28.238442 

Police Officer 2 – After tentwelve (1012) years of service$60,656.9557,381.13 $29.161995 

Investigator 1      $61,860.8958,520.05 $29.740812 

SRO/Investigator      $61,860.8958,520.05 $29.740812 

 
 
 Entry level pay schedules for all officers hired by the City of Merrill shall be as 
follows: 

First year officers will receive 85% of the police officer's rate. 

After one year, officers will receive 90% of the police officer's rate. 

After two years, officers will receive 95% of the police officer's rate. 

After three years, officers will receive 100% of the police officer's rate, provided all 

certifications required in the Agreement have been accomplished. 

A. The City shall make every reasonable effort to keep certification courses available 

for all officers. 

B. There shall be one Investigator 1 position at all times. This position  shall be held 

by promotion.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



   

22 
 

Appendix B 

MPPA seniority list 

 

Employee  Rank Date of Hire 
Patrol Officers 

Don P. Seubert 1 06/05/1995 
Jamie A. Jaeger 2 07/10/1995 
Brad J. Becker 3 06/03/1996 
Kurt J. Perra 4 07/06/1998 

Peter A. Borchardt 5 05/03/1999 
Nicole M. Steppert 6 07/11/2005 

Tyler J. Tesch 7 04/02/2007 
Matthew J. Drabek 8 06/11/2007 
Dane L. Mathwich 9 02/04/2008 

Melissa K.L. Tremaine 10 10/06/2008 
Matthew P. Waid 11 02/09/2009 

Joshua W. McCaskill 12 08/22/2011 
Robert F. Caylor 13 08/27/2012 

Eric S Soberg 14 02/11/2013 
   
   

Investigators 
Mark J. Heckendorf 1 01/05/1987 
Patrick R. Wunsch 2 07/06/1998 

 
 

16.1.c

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
6-

20
17

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lic
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
13

98
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

o
lic

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – FRINGE BENEFITS 

AT SECTION 14-5-1, GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM OF THE NON-UNION 
PERSONNEL POLICIES TO CHANGE THE EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION TO 

TEN PERCENT (10%).  
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Merrill adopted a 
Personnel Policies, Employee Handbook for the City of Merrill non-union 
employees by Resolution No. 2226; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Personnel and Finance Committee has reviewed that 
manual as it relates to Fringe Benefits at Section 14-5, employee contribution to 
the monthly premium; and 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Personnel and Finance Committee has recommended a 
change to that policy as follows: 
 

14-5-1  High Deductible Health Plan - Health Savings Account (HSA) 
Eligible.  The Employees are offered  a High Deductible Health Plan 
- Health Savings Account (HSA) Eligible with $1,250 individual and 
$2,500 family deductible levels.  In addition the Employee will pay 
20% of the next $2,000 individual and $4,000 family coinsurance.  
The Employees will pay ten (10) eight hundreds eight and ninety 
(8.98) percent of the monthly premium per pay period not to exceed 
24 pay periods per year, and the City agrees to pay the remaining 
amounts of the High Deductible group health insurance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 10th day of November, 2015, that the 
Personnel Policies Employee Handbook is amended by deleting and adding the 
highlighted language as follows at Section 14-5-1:  

 
14-5-1  High Deductible Health Plan - Health Savings Account (HSA) 

Eligible.  The Employees are offered a High Deductible Health Plan 
- Health Savings Account (HSA) Eligible with $1,250 individual and 
$2,500 family deductible levels.  In addition the Employee will pay 
20% of the next $2,000 individual and $4,000 family coinsurance.  
The Employees will pay ten (10)eight and ninety-eight hundreds 
(8.98) percent of the monthly premium per pay period not to exceed 
24 pay periods per year, and the City agrees to pay the remaining 
amounts of the High Deductible group health insurance.  

  

 

16.2.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

H
ea

lt
h

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
 (

13
49

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
m

en
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e 

h
ea

lt
h

 in
su

ra
n

ce
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n



Recommended by: Personnel and 
Finance Committee 
 
Moved: 

Passed : 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 

16.2.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

H
ea

lt
h

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 R
at

e 
 (

13
49

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
m

en
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e 

h
ea

lt
h

 in
su

ra
n

ce
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n



16
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
24

Attachment: Health Insurance Info  (1349 : Resolution to amend employee health insurance contribution



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THANKS TO THE CITY OF GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill found itself in a precarious and potentially 
dangerous state of affairs when “Ladder 63”, the City’s largest piece of firefighting 
equipment, was damaged, necessitating that it be removed from service and sent for 
repairs; and,     

WHEREAS, Chief Savone inquired and researched various options for a cost 
effective temporary replacement of that equipment; and, 

WHEREAS, Through Chief Savone’s and the Merrill Fire Department’s efforts,  
the City of Green Bay generously offered the City of Merrill Fire Department use of its 
1994 Pierce Arrow 100 foot aerial truck, which was a perfect replacement for Merrill’s 
Ladder 63 while it was being repaired; and, 

WHEREAS, the citizens and the Fire Department of the City of Merrill continue to 
be protected because of the professional generosity of the Green Bay Metro Fire 
Department and the City of Green Bay;    

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT Chief Savone, the City of Merrill 
Fire Department, the Common Council, and the City of Merrill as a whole, does issue 
this Resolution of Thanks to the City of Green Bay in honor and appreciation of their 
great generosity and exemplary and inspirational citizenship.    

 

Recommended by: Common Council 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

16.3.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
h

an
ki

n
g

 G
re

en
 B

ay
  (

14
00

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
h

an
ki

n
g

 G
re

en
 B

ay
)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Pursuant to Sec. 62.09(1)(b), Wis. Stats., the Common Council of the 
City of Merrill hereby elects to amend the Municipal Code, by removing the Street 
Commissioner as an elected Officer, and that Office is eliminated.  All duties 
previously performed by the Street Commissioner shall be performed by a Public 
Works Director/City Engineer, or Street Superintendent, as directed by the Board of 
Public Works. 

Section 2. This charter ordinance shall become effective upon the retirement of the 
current Street Commissioner, on December 31, 2015. 

Section 3. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 4. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published:_____________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE:  
 
Re: Eliminating the Street Commissioner as an 

elected officer    

17.1.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ar

te
r 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 E

lim
in

at
in

g
 e

le
ct

ed
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

  (
14

02
 :

 C
h

ar
te

r 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 e
lim

in
at

in
g

 t
h

e 
el

ec
te

d
 S

tr
ee

t



 
 
Approved: 
 
William R. Bialecki, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
 

17.1.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ar

te
r 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 E

lim
in

at
in

g
 e

le
ct

ed
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

  (
14

02
 :

 C
h

ar
te

r 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 e
lim

in
at

in
g

 t
h

e 
el

ec
te

d
 S

tr
ee

t



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 

MERRILL, WI 54452 
 

 
 

         

 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  
Introduced: November 10, 2015  
1st Reading:   
2nd Reading:   
3rd Reading:   

Committee/Commission Action: 

 
 AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  2016 Budget.  That the proposed 2016 budget of the City of Merrill, a 
summary of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and dated November 10, 2015, be and 
is hereby adopted. 

Section 2.  Non-Union Compensation. Included within said budget is implementation of 
the new Carlson-Dettman non-union compensation schedule effective December 28, 
2015.  Except for red-circled positons, employees are to be slotted at the nearest step that 
provides a compensation increase above their 2015 compensation rate. Said non-union 
wage increases are hereby approved per the attached Exhibit B.  Except for red-circled 
positions, a 1.0% wage increase effective June 27, 2016 is also authorized.   
 
Except for seasonal Limited Term Employees (LTEs) and Election Officials, non-union 
employees not slotted on the new compensation schedule will receive 1.0% wage 
increases effective December 28, 2015 and June 27, 2016. 
 
Section 3.  Tax Levy.  There is hereby levied a tax of $           upon all taxable property 
within the City of Merrill as returned by the City Assessor in the year 2015 for the uses 
and purposes set for in said budget, plus the tax incremental levies associated with the 
City of Merrill’s Tax Increment Finance Districts No. 3 through No. 10.  
 
Section 4.  Tax Roll. That the City Clerk shall be, and hereby is, authorized to prepare a 
tax roll for the City of Merrill for 2015 and spread the above stated tax upon said tax roll 
together with the tax levy amounts approved by other governmental units authorized to 
impose said tax levies on taxable properties within the City of Merrill.  The City Clerk is 
further directed to sign a warrant for the collection of said tax. 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE:   
 
Re: Adopting the 2016 City of Merrill Budget and 

Establishing the Tax Levy for Year 2015. 

17.2.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
B

u
d

g
et

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



 
Section 5.  Expenditures. There is hereby appropriated out of the receipts of the City 
of Merrill for the year 2015 including monies received from the property tax levy, to the 
various funds and purposes set up in said 2016 budget, the sum of $            as more fully 
set forth in said budget, exclusive of amounts budgeted for Tax Increment Finance 
Districts No. 3 through No. 10 and the Landfill, Water, and Sewer Utility Funds. 
 

Section 6.  Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion 
of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. 
It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance would have been 
adopted if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal application had not 
been made. 

Section 7.  Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolu-
tions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect from and 
after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, 
City Clerk

 
 
 
 
 

17.2.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 f
o

r 
B

u
d

g
et

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
30

Attachment: Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
31

Attachment: Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
32

Attachment: Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
33

Attachment: Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17.2.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 -
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 -
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



Tax Rate Summary - 2016 PROPOSED LEVY Revised: 11/2/2015

City of Merrill - Tax Rate Summary
2015 Tax Levy - For 2016 Budget 

Levy Budget City Tax Rate Change % Tax Rate Per $75,000 Difference Tax Levy Tax Levy
Year Year without TIF in Tax Rate Change Assessment Per $75,000 Increase Amount

2010 2011 $12.462 $0.340 2.8% $935 $26 3.24% $152,254

2011 2012 $12.460 ($0.002) 0.0% $935 $0 0.86% $25,600

2012 2013 $12.508 $0.048 0.4% $938 $4 0.02% $860

2013 2014 $12.508 $0.000 0.0% $938 $4 None City * $0

2014 2015 $12.849 $0.341 2.7% $964 $26 8.86% ** $431,936

Proposed Tax Levy of $5,344,578
2015 2016 $12.815 ($0.034) -0.3% $961 ($3) 0.66% $35,194

*  General Fund Offset of $408,018 for increased Debt Service for new fire station.

** Included Debt service tax levy increase of $300,615.

     

$11.500

$11.750

$12.000

$12.250

$12.500

$12.750

$13.000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

City Mill Rate by Tax Levy Year 

17.2.c

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 R

at
e 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

- 
20

16
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
37

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
38

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
39

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
40

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
41

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
42

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
43

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
44

Attachment: Finance Director Changes - Summary  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17.2.d

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

C
h

an
g

es
 -

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

 (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.d

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

C
h

an
g

es
 -

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

 (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.d

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
an

ce
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

C
h

an
g

es
 -

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

 (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 240

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 246

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 248

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 262

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 271

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 273

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 274

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 275

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 276

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 277

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 278

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 279

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 280

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.e

Packet Pg. 281

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 2
01

6 
- 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
82

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
83

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
84

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
85

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
86

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
87

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
88

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
89

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17
.2

.e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
90

Attachment: Budget 2016 - General Fund  (1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy)



17.2.f

Packet Pg. 291

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 L
an

d
fi

ll 
 (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 292

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 293

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 294

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 295

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 296

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 297

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 298

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 299

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 300

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.g

Packet Pg. 301

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 S
ew

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 302

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 303

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 304

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 305

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 306

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 307

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 308

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 309

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 310

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 311

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.h

Packet Pg. 312

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 W
at

er
 F

u
n

d
  (

13
96

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 2
01

6 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 2

01
5 

T
ax

 L
ev

y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 313

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 314

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 315

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 316

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 317

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 318

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 319

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 320

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 321

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 322

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)



17.2.i

Packet Pg. 323

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 U

ti
lit

y 
- 

20
16

 C
ap

it
al

  (
13

96
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 2

01
6 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 2
01

5 
T

ax
 L

ev
y)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 1355 : Minutes of October 13, 2015 meeting
	a. Council Minutes - 2015-10-13


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 1356 : Revenue & Expense Report as of October 31, 2015
	a. Revenue and Expense Report


	8. Communications and Petitions:
	1. 1386 : Kohnhorst Insurance Claim
	a. Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim
	b. Kohnhort Disallowance Recommendation from Insurance
	c. Kornhorst  Insurance Claim Letter


	9. General agenda items:
	1. 1358 : Employee Years of Service Recognition:
	1359 : Mike Schreiber service
	1360 : Tadd Wegener service
	1361 : Scott Krause service

	10. Public Hearing(s): 
	1. 1362 : Public Hearing on proposed 2016 Budget

	11. Committee of the Whole: 
	1. 1404 : Implement Carlson-Dettmann Compensation Study
	2. 1399 : COW recommendations regarding MADC escrow/bond elimination
	a. Request and info on Prospect Street cleanup project

	3. 1395 : 2016 Budget Recommendations from COW meeting
	a. 2015 and Proposed 2016 City Organization Charts
	b. Fiscal Impact of new Public Works positions


	12. Health and Safety Committee:
	1. 1337 : Class B license applications for Collin's Bar and Grill
	a. License Application from Stephen Schultz
	b. Relinquish Letter from Shirley Klug


	13. Water and Sewage Disposal Committee:
	1. 1363 : Sevice Fee Increases
	a. Water and Sewer Fee Adjustments Info


	14. Mayor's Appointments:
	1403 : Appointment of James Erno to the Housing Authority

	15. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 1357 : Place minutes on file
	a. Committee Minutes


	16. Resolutions:
	1. 1398 : Resolution on Police Union Contract
	a. Resolution Ratifying 2016-2017 Police Union Contract
	b. Fiscal Impact of Police Union Contract
	c. 2016-2017 Proposed Police Union Contract

	2. 1349 : Resolution to amend employee health insurance contribution percentage
	a. Resolution on Employee Health Insurance Contribution Rate
	b. Health Insurance Info

	3. 1400 : Resolution thanking Green Bay
	a. Resolution thanking Green Bay


	17. Ordinances:
	1. 1402 : Charter Ordinance eliminating the elected Street Commissioner
	a. Charter Ordinance Eliminating elected Street Commissioner

	2. 1396 : Ordinance on 2016 Budget and 2015 Tax Levy
	a. Ordinance for Budget
	b. Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix
	c. Tax Rate Summary - 2016
	d. Finance Director Changes - Summary
	e. Budget 2016 - General Fund
	f. Utility - 2016 Landfill
	g. Utility - 2016 Sewer Fund
	h. Utility - 2016 Water Fund
	i. Utility - 2016 Capital


	18. Mayor's Communications
	19. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · Council Minutes - 2015-10-13
	7.1.a · Revenue and Expense Report
	8.1.a · Amy Kohnhorst Insurance Claim
	8.1.b · Kohnhort Disallowance Recommendation from Insurance
	8.1.c · Kornhorst  Insurance Claim Letter
	11.2.a · Request and info on Prospect Street cleanup project
	11.3.a · 2015 and Proposed 2016 City Organization Charts
	11.3.b · Fiscal Impact of new Public Works positions
	12.1.a · License Application from Stephen Schultz
	12.1.b · Relinquish Letter from Shirley Klug
	13.1.a · Water and Sewer Fee Adjustments Info
	15.1.a · Committee Minutes
	16.1.a · Resolution Ratifying 2016-2017 Police Union Contract
	16.1.b · Fiscal Impact of Police Union Contract
	16.1.c · 2016-2017 Proposed Police Union Contract
	16.2.a · Resolution on Employee Health Insurance Contribution Rate
	16.2.b · Health Insurance Info
	16.3.a · Resolution thanking Green Bay
	17.1.a · Charter Ordinance Eliminating elected Street Commissioner
	17.2.a · Ordinance for Budget
	17.2.b · Budget 2016 Ordinance - Appendix
	17.2.c · Tax Rate Summary - 2016
	17.2.d · Finance Director Changes - Summary
	17.2.e · Budget 2016 - General Fund
	17.2.f · Utility - 2016 Landfill
	17.2.g · Utility - 2016 Sewer Fund
	17.2.h · Utility - 2016 Water Fund
	17.2.i · Utility - 2016 Capital


